
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
__________________________________ 

 
Thursday, 18 September 2008 at 6.15 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

A G E N D A 
______________________________________ 

 
VENUE 

MEETING ROOM M71, SEVENTH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY 
PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair:    
  
  
  
Councillor Helal Abbas 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Abjol Miah, (Leader of the 
Respect Group) 
Councillor Joshua Peck, (Lead Member, 
Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Muhammed Abdullah 
Salique 
 

Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton) 
Councillor Abdul Matin, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Stephanie 
Eaton) 
Councillor Harun Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Tim O'Flaherty, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Stephanie 
Eaton) 
 

 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: , Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4881, E-mail: daniel.hudson@towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

Thursday, 18 September 2008 
 

6.15 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  3 - 10  
 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 

unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Audit 
Committee held on 30th June 2008.  
 

  

4. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS    
 To receive any deputations or petitions.    
5. FEEDBACK PRESENTATIONS - NIL/LIMITED 

ASSURANCE  
  

 To receive presentations from Children’s Services, 
Communities, Localities & Culture and Development & 
Renewal in relation to the reasons for Nil/Limited 
Assurance judgements made in the last Internal Audit 
Annual Report.  
 
Issue was raised at the 30th June 2008 meeting, Item 9.1.   

  

6. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION 
REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

  

6 .1 Audit Progress Report   11 - 20  
 Audit Commission report attached.     



6 .2 Annual Governance Report     
 Audit Commission report to follow.    
7. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS ITEMS 

FOR CONSIDERATION  
  

7 .1 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report   21 - 48  
 To consider and agree the recommendations detailed in 

the report.  
  

8. ANY URGENT UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS    

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\5\AI00016563\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\6\5\AI00016563\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00016565\AuditCommitteeMinutes300608DHU0.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON MONDAY 30TH JUNE 2008 

MEETING ROOM M71, SEVENTH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
 

Members Present: 
 
  
Councillor Joshua Peck (Lead Member, Resources and 

Performance) 
Councillor Helal Abbas  
Councillor Denise Jones  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader Liberal Democrat Group) 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
None  

 
Officers Present: 
 
Chris Naylor – Corporate Director, Resources 
Tony Qayum – Head of Audit Services 
Minesh Jani – Service Head Risk Management 
Richard Parsons – Service Head Procurement & Corporate 

Programming 
Steve Lucas – Audit Manager, Audit Commission 
Steve Vinall – Service Manager, Deloittee 
John Hayes – District Auditor, Audit Commission 
Daniel Hudson – Democratic Services, Chief Executive's 

 
 
 
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

 
The Members of the Committee were asked to appoint a Chair. 
 
RESOLVED   
 
That Councillor Joshua Peck be appointed Chair of the Audit Committee for 
the municipal year 2008/09. 
 
Councillor Joshua Peck in the Chair. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00016565\AuditCommitteeMinutes300608DHU0.doc 

 
 
 

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 
 
The Members of the Committee were asked to appoint a Vice-Chair. 
 
RESOLVED   
 
That Councillor Denise Jones be appointed Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee 
for the municipal year 2008/09. 
 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
RESOLVED that apologies for absence be received on behalf of Councillors 
Abjol Miah and Abdus Salique.  
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
No declarations of Interest were made pursuant to the Member Code of 
Conduct. 
 
 

5. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED that the unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 
12th March 2008 be approved subject to the following amendments: 
 
Page 4, Item 5, Audit Committee Terms of Reference and Membership 
 
The word Chairman be replaced with Chair. 
 
Page 5, Item 6, Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 
 
Second paragraph, second sentence to read as: 
 
The Committee noted these aims which accorded to political priorities and 
noted measures where in place to address these issues. 
 
Page 6, Item 7, External Audit 2007/08 – Progress Report 
 
Fifth paragraph: 
 
Common Area Assessment be replaced with Comprehensive Area 
Assessment.   
 
  
 

Page 4



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00016565\AuditCommitteeMinutes300608DHU0.doc 

 
6. AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP 

 
RESOLVED that the Terms of Reference and Committee Membership be 
agreed.  
 
Members of the Committee expressed concern that the Conservative Group 
had not nominated a Member to this and other Committees of the Council. 
 
 

7. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
None were received. 
 
 
With the technical section of the agenda completed the Chair welcomed all to 
the meeting and asked all in attendance to introduce themselves. 
 
 

8. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
8.1 Audit Progress Report 

 
Following a brief introduction from Steve Lucas (Audit Manager, Audit 
Commission) it was RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
ACTION BY:  Steve Lucas (Audit Manager, Audit Commission) 
 
 

8.2 Audit and Inspection Plan 2008/09 
 
John Hayes (District Auditor, Audit Commission) presented the report and in 
reply to a question raised by the Chair he elucidated upon the work to be 
completed in relation to the proposed audit and inspection of the Pension 
Fund and how this would differ to previously undertaken audits. 
 
In reply to points raised by Councillors Jones and Eaton, he stated that 
Councillor Jones membership of the ALMO Shadow Board would not effect 
her position on the Audit Committee and referring to Councillor Eaton’s point 
the existing partnership arrangements with the PCT had raised no concerns 
and thus indicated no reason for an Audit. However, if this position was to 
change then an Audit could be proposed for future years.    
 
Councillor Abbas welcomed the reductions in fee charges and noted the 
comments of John Hayes (District Auditor, Audit Commission) as to the 
positive impact of a good CPA score upon the level of required audits. 
 
Finally, it was RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
ACTION BY:  John Hayes (District Auditor, Audit Commission)  

Page 5



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00016565\AuditCommitteeMinutes300608DHU0.doc 

 
9. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
9.1 Internal Audit Annual Report 

 
Following an introduction from Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
Members of the Committee expressed concern at the number of Nil and 
Limited Assurances given. 
 
Richard Parsons (Service Head Procurement & Corporate Programming) 
clarified the issues (failure to authorise statements, use of non approved 
suppliers etc) that had been identified in relation to the control and monitoring 
of purchasing cards and the actions that had already been undertaken 
(cancellation of purchase cards, reminders relating to the need to ensure 
Value for Money when purchasing etc) to resolve these issues and the 
rationale for the proposed relaunch of the purchasing cards system in the 
autumn 2008.  
 
Chris Naylor (Corporate Director Resources) added that purchase cards 
where a very useful tool which support numerous functions undertaken by the 
Council. They were extremely auditable and had greatly reduced the 
bureaucracy that had previously surrounded Council purchasing.  
 
With regard to the Limited Assurance (Extensive) given to Waste Disposal 
Contract Monitoring and S.106 Planning Obligations and the concerns raised 
by Members of the Committee he outlined the work being undertaken with the 
Directorates involved and made specific reference to the possible future 
allocation of S.106 monies. 
 
While noting this the Committee expressed the view and RESOLVED that 
where a Nil Assurance and Limited Assurance (Extensive) judgement had 
been reached then in future the Corporate Director and Service Head of the 
service involved should be called before the Committee to given a detailed 
explanation. 
 
In relation to the Limited Assurance (Extensive) given to Waste Disposal 
Contract Monitoring and S.106 Planning Obligations it was RESOLVED that 
due to the importance of the services involved the Corporate Directorates and 
Service Heads involved come to the next meeting to explain the background 
to the Limited Assurances given and the actions proposed to resolve these. 
 
Regarding the Limited Assurance for Right to Buy it was RESOLVED that the 
Audit Report be forwarded to the Lead Member Housing and Development. 
 
Councillor Abbas raised concern at the number of schools that had received 
Limited Assurance (Moderate) and Substantial Assurance (Moderate) 
judgements and while noting the comments of Chris Naylor (Corporate 
Director Resources) as to the nature of these judgements it was RESOLVED 
that the Corporate Director Children’s Services provide a note to Members of 

Page 6



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00016565\AuditCommitteeMinutes300608DHU0.doc 

the Committee as to the financial and governance expertise support given to 
the schools involved. 
 
In reply to a question posed by the Chair, Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk 
Management) clarified the work undertaken in relation to control issues 
regarding Unauthorised Occupancies.   
 
Finally, and having due regard to the actions indicated above it was 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.   
             
ACTION BY:  Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 

Corporate Directors Children’s Services, 
Communities, Localities and Culture & Development 
and Renewal 
Democratic Services (DH) 

 
9.2 Annual Anti Fraud Report 2007/08 

 
Members of the Committee welcomed the report and in reply to points raised 
Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services) clarified the key results of the 
outcomes of the National Fraud Initiative which were detailed in section 5.9. 
The on-going level of Council Tax Single Person discount overpayments 
could not be clarified as this was the first year that this type of overpayment 
had been fully identified. He confirmed that a communication strategy had 
been planned to publicise the fraud investigation work and the outcomes 
achieved. Finally, he noted the comments of Councillor Jones in relation to 
the need to change some of the terminology/language used in the report. 
 
Therefore, it was RESOLVED that the report be noted.    
 
ACTION BY:  Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services) 
 
 

9.3 Annual Anti Fraud Plan 2008/09 
 
Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services) introduced the report and clarified the 
rationale behind giving additional support to Tower Hamlets Homes. 
 
In reply to questions raised by Councillor Eaton regarding Data Control 
management, Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) reported upon 
the work undertaken by Deloittee in respect of this matter. A level of 
assurance comfort had been given to the Council although notwithstanding 
this it was accepted that this matter could be looked at in greater detail in the 
future. 
 
Subsequent to this it was RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
ACTION BY:  Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services)    
 
 

Page 7



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00016565\AuditCommitteeMinutes300608DHU0.doc 

 
 

9.4 Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 
 
Subsequent to a succinct introduction from Tony Qayum (Head of Audit 
Services) it was RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
ACTION BY:  Tony Qayum (Head of Audit Services)   
 
 

9.5 Progress on Follow up Audits 
 
Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) concisely introduced the 
report. 
 
Making reference to section 6.1 of the report (Escalation Procedure) the 
Chair, supported by Councillor Eaton, welcomed the proposals and added 
that copies of the escalation reports should also be sent to the Lead Member 
Resources and Performance and if deemed appropriate ‘offending’ officers be 
asked to attend future meetings of the Audit Committee to explain why Audit 
recommendations had not been fully actioned. 
 
Therefore, and having due regard to the above, it was RESOLVED that the 
escalation procedures set out at section 6.1 of the report be welcomed and 
endorsed.  
 
ACTION BY:  Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
 
 

9.6 Annual Governance Statement for the 2007/08 Accounts 
 
Following an introduction from Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
it was RESOLVED that: 
 
(i) the process and findings set out in paragraphs 4.1 – 7.4 of the report 

be approved subject to Contract Management Arrangements being 
added to paragraph 7.4; and 

 
(ii) the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year 2007/08 and 

as set out at Appendix 3 of the report be approved.  
 
ACTION BY:  Minesh Jani (Service Head Risk Management) 
 
 

9.7 Draft Statement of Final Accounts 2007/08 
 
Alan Finch (Service Head Corporate Finance) introduced the report and an 
Addendum report was circulated which clarified a number of matters detailed 
in the main report. 
 

Page 8



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\5\AI00016565\AuditCommitteeMinutes300608DHU0.doc 

Having noted and welcomed the more robust processes used this year to 
produce the draft statement the Committee RESOLVED to: 
 
(i) approve the draft final Statement of Accounts for the financial year 

ending 31st March 2008; and 
 
(ii) note that the Accounts will now be submitted for audit.  
 
Copies of the Statement were signed by the Chair.  
 
ACTION BY:  Alan Finch (Service Head Corporate Finance)  
 
 

10. ANY URGENT UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS  
 
None was raised. 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.36p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair, 
Audit Committee 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Detailed Report 

Progress Report 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Audit 2007/08 

18 September 2008 Audit Committee 

Agenda Item 61

Page 11



© Audit Commission 2008 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public 
money and makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public resources 
and the corporate governance of public services. 

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles: 

 auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited; 

 the scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial 
statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business; and 

 auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key 
stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out in 
the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Local Government Act 1999 and the 
Commission's statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, 
appointed auditors are also required to comply with the current professional 
standards issued by the independent Auditing Practices Board.

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their 
statutory responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement 
independently of both the Commission and the audited body. 

Status of our reports to the Council 

Our reports are prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 
Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission. Reports are 
prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to directors/members or officers. 
They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body, and no responsibility is 
taken by auditors to any director/member or officer in their individual capacity, or 
to any third party. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

Page 12



Progress Report Contents  3

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Contents

Summary 4

Introduction 4

2007/08 4

2008/09 4

Recent Audit Commission publications 5

Better Budget management Toolkit 5

Consultation on the approach to Use of Resources scoring (July 2008) 5

Code of data matching practice (July 2008) 5

Tougher at the top (July 2008) 6

Don’t stop me now? – preparing for an ageing population (July 2008) 6

Appendix 1 – Detailed Progress on 2007/08 7

Appendix 2 – Detailed Progress on 2008/09 9

Page 13



4 Progress Report Summary

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Summary

Introduction

1 The purpose of this progress report is to brief the Audit Committee on work 
completed by the Audit Commission since the Audit Committee meeting in June 
2008 and to inform the Committee of work currently being planned or undertaken. 
In addition, we draw to Members attention recent relevant Audit Commission 
publications.

2007/08

2 We prepared and agreed the 2007/08 Audit and Inspection Plan with officers in 
April and presented it to the Audit Panel in July 2007. A summary of the work 
programme and progress to date is shown in Appendix 1 but, in summary, since 
the last Audit Committee meeting, we have: 

 published the corporate assessment report;

 completed our work on the Council’s financial systems; 

 completed a majority of the work on the Council’s financial statements; 

 prepared the annual governance report; and 

 started the audit of the Council’s grant claims and returns. 

3 The annual governance report is a separate item on the agenda and contains the 
key messages arising from the audit of the financial statements.

4 There are no issues arising to date form our work on grant claims we need to 
bring to the attention of the Audit Committee. 

2008/09

5 The 2008/09 audit plan, was presented to the Audit Committee at the June 2008 
meeting and the key outputs are shown in Appendix 2. Since that meeting, we 
have:

 started the work on data quality management arrangements and the detailed 
audit of individual performance indicators; 

 received the Council’s self assessment for the value for money element of 
Use of Resources, held a set up meeting and started the initial work; and 

 arranged set up meetings to agree project specifications regarding our work 
on homelessness and around housing arrangements, where we aim to follow 
up our previous report including progress towards meeting the Decent Homes 
Standards.

Page 14



Progress Report Recent Audit Commission publications  5

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Recent Audit Commission publications 

Better Budget management Toolkit (August 2008) 

6 The Audit Commission has launched a new toolkit aimed at helping authorities 
identify areas of good budget management and areas that can be improved. 

7 The toolkit aims to raise standards of financial management, specifically in the 
area of budget management. It will do this by helping the audited body to identify 
areas of good financial management and areas for improvement. It will provide an 
evidence base that the organisation can use to challenge its processes and 
attitudes to financial management.  

Consultation on Comprehensive Area 
Assessments (July 2008) 

8 The Audit Commission, with its partner Inspectorates, have published a second 
consultation regarding the introduction of Comprehensive Area Assessments 
which are due to start in April 2009. The consultation asks for views on 15 
questions with the first question “Do you broadly agree with our proposals for the 
overall CAA framework”. 

Consultation on the approach to Use of 
Resources scoring (July 2008) 

9 In parallel with the joint inspectorates' consultation on proposals for 
Comprehensive Area Assessment the Audit Commission is also consulting on 
proposals for scoring Use of Resources (UoR) assessments for 2008/09. 

Code of data matching practice (July 2008) 

10 The Audit Commission’s Code of Data Matching Practice 2008 was laid before 
parliament in July.  The Code will govern the Commission’s data matching 
exercises conducted under its new statutory powers which came into effect in 
April this year. The new powers, as conferred by the Serious Crime Act 2007, 
allow the Commission to build on previous exercises by making it available to a 
wider range of bodies. 

11 The Commission’s Code of Data Matching Practice helps ensure that all those 
participating in data matching exercises, both auditors and bodies supplying data 
for matching, comply with the law when sharing and matching personal data. The 
Code also aims to promote good practice in data matching and includes guidance 
on the process for letting individuals know why their data is matched and by 
whom, the standards that apply and where to find further information. 

Page 15



6 Progress Report Recent Audit Commission publications 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Tougher at the top? (July 2008) 

12 A discussion paper published by the Audit Commission, examines factors 
influencing the job market for local authority chief executives. The findings identify 
an increasing tendency for local authorities to recruit existing chief executives 
from other authorities. Over a three-year period, the number of vacancies at 
single tier authorities and county councils filled by a chief executive from another 
authority more than doubled: from nine in 1999-2001 to 21 in 2005-2007. 

13 The research found that the talent pool that authorities use is shrinking, while the 
demands of the role are increasing. The current trend towards recruiting existing 
chief executives, particularly by poorer performing authorities, has meant that 
recruitment costs and wages have risen. 

Don’t stop me now? – preparing for an ageing 
population (July 2008) 

14 The Audit Commission report looks at the challenges and opportunities facing 
England as its population gets older.  Don't stop me now - Preparing for an 
ageing population, finds that councils in England, particularly those which have 
the fastest ageing populations, are not ready to meet the needs of older 
residents, who will make up more than a third of the population by 2009. 

15 The report also looks at the government's 2005 strategy for older people, 
Opportunity Age, and finds that although it has the potential to improve the lives 
of an ageing population, so far it hasn't delivered those benefits to older people 
across the country. 

Page 16



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 D
e
ta

ile
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
  

7

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
e
ta

il
e
d

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a

b
le

 1
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 o
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

P
ro

d
u

c
t 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
le

a
d

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 

le
a
d

T
im

in
g

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s

it
io

n
 

T
h

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

W
o
rk

 o
n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

S
te

v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
/ 

P
a
u
l 

J
a
c
k
lin

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 –
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
0
8

D
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

h
a
v
e
 f

e
d
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

; 

 
o
p
in

io
n
; 

 
IS

A
 2

6
0
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
a
n
d
 

 
o
p
in

io
n
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
/ 

C
h
ri
s
 

N
a
y
lo

r
J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
/S

te
v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s
/ 

P
a
u
l 
J
a
c
k
lin

 
J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0
8

D
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 n
e

a
rl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

 D
ra

ft
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 

it
e
m

 o
n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 b

y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
.

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

B
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

p
la

n
M

a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
 

K
a
s
h
 P

a
n
d
y
a
/ 

S
te

v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s

J
u
ly

 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7

A
u
d
it
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 

P
la

n
 m

e
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

V
F

M
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
A

la
n
 F

in
c
h
 

S
a
ra

h
 E

v
a
n
s
 

M
a
y
 –

 A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
7

W
o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
in

a
lis

e
d
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
M

a
u
re

e
n
 

M
c
E

le
n
e
y

T
im

 C
a
m

p
b
e
ll 

A
p
ri
l 
- 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7

W
o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
in

a
lis

e
d
. 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
/R

ic
h
a
rd

 P
a
rs

o
n
s
 

N
e
il 

F
o
s
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

–
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

8
. 

Page 17



8
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 D
e
ta

ile
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

P
ro

d
u

c
t 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
le

a
d

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 

le
a
d

T
im

in
g

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s

it
io

n
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 (

C
o

n
td

) 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
/ 

S
te

v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
7

 -
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

to
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 b

y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 

D
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

L
u
c
y
 S

u
tt
o
n
 

S
te

v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
/ 

D
a
v
id

 
H

o
w

s
o

n
 

J
u
n
e
 -

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

N
o
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 g

iv
e
n
 o

n
 6

 k
e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

a
u
d
it
e
d
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 f

in
d
in

g
s
. 

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 

ju
d

g
e

m
e
n

ts
M

a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

 
K

a
s
h

 P
a

n
d

y
a

 /
 

S
te

v
e

 L
u

c
a

s
/ 

C
a
ro

ly
n
 S

h
o
o
s
m

it
h
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

- 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

W
o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 s

c
o
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

C
P

A
 2

0
0
7
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
.

In
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 C

P
A

 

C
P

A
/ 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e
l 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

A
la

n
 S

te
w

a
rd

 
K

a
s
h

 P
a

n
d

y
a

 /
 

S
te

v
e

 L
u

c
a

s
/ 

C
a
ro

ly
n
 S

h
o
o
s
m

it
h
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 -

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 C
o
n
ra

d
i 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 –
 M

a
y
 

2
0
0
8

R
e
p
o
rt

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
8
. 

O
v

e
ra

ll

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 

In
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 L

e
tt
e

r 
M

a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
 /

 S
te

v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

- 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
9
 

G
ra

n
t 

c
la

im
s

 

C
la

im
s
 f

o
r 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
/A

k
ro

m
 

M
ia

h
S

te
v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
/P

a
u
l 

J
a
c
k
lin

A
p
ri
l 
- 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

G
ra

n
t 

a
u
d
it
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

Page 18



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 –

 D
e
ta

ile
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
  

9

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 D
e
ta

il
e
d

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 

T
a

b
le

 2
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 o
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

P
ro

d
u

c
t 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
le

a
d

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 

le
a
d

T
im

in
g

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s

it
io

n
 

T
h

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

W
o
rk

 o
n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

S
te

v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
/ 

P
a
u
l 

J
a
c
k
lin

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 –
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
0
9

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

; 

 
o
p
in

io
n
; 

 
IS

A
 2

6
0
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
a
n
d
 

 
o
p
in

io
n
 m

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r/
A

la
n
 

F
in

c
h

J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
/S

te
v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s
/ 

P
a
u
l 
J
a
c
k
lin

 
J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0
9

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e
 

V
ip

u
l 
T

h
a
c
k
e
r/

 
S

te
v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

–
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

S
e
t 

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
n
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e
 

V
ip

u
l 
T

h
a
c
k
e
r/

 
S

te
v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

–
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

S
e
t 

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
n
e

d
 f

o
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

 

Page 19



1
0

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 –

 D
e
ta

ile
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 (

C
o

n
td

) 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
/ 

S
te

v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
8

 -
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

D
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

L
u
c
y
 S

u
tt
o
n
 

S
te

v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
/ 

N
e
il 

W
h
a
lle

y
J
u
n
e
 -

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 

ju
d

g
e

m
e
n

ts
M

a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r/
A

la
n
 

F
in

c
h

J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
/ 

S
te

v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s
/ 

R
a
m

a
 

K
ri
s
h
n
a
n
/ 

P
a
u
l 

J
a
c
k
lin

A
u

g
u

s
t 

- 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

W
o
rk

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y
 

th
e

m
e

.

In
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 C

P
A

 

C
P

A
/ 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e
l 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

A
la

n
 S

te
w

a
rd

 
J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
 /

 S
te

v
e
 

L
u

c
a

s
/

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 -

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
9
 

O
v

e
ra

ll

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 

In
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 L

e
tt
e

r 
M

a
rt

in
 S

m
it
h
/ 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
J
o
n
 H

a
y
e
s
 /

 S
te

v
e
 

L
u
c
a
s

T
o
 b

e
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d

G
ra

n
t 

c
la

im
s

 

C
la

im
s
 f

o
r 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
/A

k
ro

m
 

M
ia

h
S

te
v
e
 L

u
c
a
s
/P

a
u
l 

J
a
c
k
lin

A
p
ri
l 
- 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

Page 20



 
    
    
    
     

REPORT TO: 
 
Audit 
Committee 
 

DATE 

 

18 September 2008 

CLASSIFICATION 

 

Confidential 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF: 
 

Corporate Director of 
Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Service Head Risk Management  
 

 
Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance 

Report 
 
Ward(s) Affected: N/A 

 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises the work of Internal Audit for the period June to August 

2008. 
 

1.2. The report sets out the assurance rating of each audit finalised in the period and 
gives an overall assurance rating. The quarterly assurance report feeds into the 
annual internal audit opinion which will be produced at the end of the financial 
year.    

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and to take 

account of the assurance opinion assigned to the systems reviewed during the 
period. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
 
 

 Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 
4th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place 
 
 

 
   
 

Agenda Item 71

Page 21



 
    
    
    
     
 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1. Since April 2005, we have assigned each review one of four ratings, depending 

upon the level of our findings. The ratings we use are: - 
 

Assurance Definition  

Full 
There is a sound system of control designed to achieve 
the system objectives, and the controls are being 
consistently applied; 

Substantial 
While there is a basically sound system there are 
weaknesses which put some of the control objectives at 
risk or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance 
with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk; 

Limited 
Weakness in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk or the level of non-compliance 
puts the system objectives at risk; 

Nil 
Control is generally weak leaving the system open to 
significant error or abuse, or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or 
abuse. 

 
 
3.2. In addition, each review is also considered in terms of its significance to the 

authority in line with the previously agreed methodology. The significance of each 
auditable area is assigned, based on the following factors: -  

 
Significance Definition 

Extensive 
High Risk, High Impact area including Fundamental 
Financial Systems, Major Service activity, Scale of 
Service in excess of £5m.   

Moderate Medium impact, key systems and / or Scale of Service 
£1m- £5m. 

Low Low impact service area, Scale of Service below £1m.   
 
 
4. Overall Audit Opinion  
 
4.1. Overall, based on work performed in the year to date, we are able to give a 

substantial level of assurance over the systems and controls in place within the 
authority.  

Page 22



 
    
    
    
     

 
 
5. Overview of finalised audits  
 
5.1. Since the last Assurance Report that was presented to the Audit Committee in 

June 2008, 14 final reports have been issued. The findings of  these audits are 
presented as follows: 
� The chart below summarises the assurance rating assigned by the level of 

significance of each report.  
� Appendix 1 provides a list of the audits organised by assurance rating and 

significance. 
� Appendix 2 provides a brief summary of each audit.  

 
5.2. Members are invited to consider the following: 

� The overall level of assurance provided (para 5.3-5.5).  
� The findings of individual reports. The Audit Committee may wish to focus on 

those with a higher level of significance and those assigned Nil or Limited 
assurance. These are clearly set out in appendix 1. 

 
5.3. The chart ranks the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in place. 

This assurance rating will feed into Internal Audit’s overall assessment of the 
adequacy of governance arrangements that is required as part of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2003 and the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006. 

 
 

(Please refer to the table on the next page). 

Page 23



 
    
    
    
     

Chart 1 

Assurance SUMMARY 
Full Substantial Limited Nil N/A 

 
Ex

ten
siv

e  
5 

 
2   

 
M

od
er

ate
 

 
5 

 
2   

Sig
nif

ica
nc

e 
 

 
Lo

w  
 

 
  

Total  
100% 0 10 4 0 0 

 
5.4. From the table above it can be seen that seven finalised audits focused on high 

risk or high value areas; five were assigned Substantial Assurance and the 
remaining two, Limited Assurance.  A further seven audits were of moderate 
significance and of these, all but two were assigned Substantial Assurance.  

 
5.5. Overall, 71% of audits resulted in an adequate assurance (substantial or full). The 

remaining 29% of audits have an inadequate assurance rating (limited or nil).  
Work in progress is shown in appendix 3. 

 

Page 24



 
    
    
    
     

 
6. Performance Indicators 
 
6.1. At the start of the year, two performance indicators were formulated to monitor the 

delivery of the Internal Audit service as part of the Chief Executive’s Monitoring 
process. The table below shows the actual and targets for each indicator for the 
period June to August 2008. 

 
Performance measure 

 Target Actual 
Percentage of Audit Plan completed in 
year to date 

100% (full year) 
29% (to Aug) 28% 

Percentage of Audit Recommendations 
implemented by Auditees at six monthly 
follow up audit stage 

95% 79% 

 
 

6.2. The table above shows that the proportion of internal audit work completed to 
August 2008 which is broadly in line with the plan. The target for the year is to 
complete 100% of the plan. 

 
6.3. The percentage of recommendation implemented at the follow up stage has 

remained the same as previously reported. 
 
 
 
7. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
7.1. The comments of the Corporate Director of Resources have been incorporated 

into this report. 
 
8. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
8.1. There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.   
 
9. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
9.1. There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this report. 
 
10. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 
10.1. There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 

Page 25



 
    
    
    
     
11. Risk Management Implications 
 
11.1. The implications arising from failure to control and manage risks could result in 

vulnerability to the systems of control that may be exploited. This report identifies 
areas of risk for management to mitigate. 

 
12. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
12.1. There are no specific SAGE implications. 

 
 

 

Page 26



Su
mm

ary
 of

 A
ud

its
 U

nd
ert

ak
en

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 As
su
ran
ce
 le
ve
l 

Sig
nif
ica
nc
e 

Di
rec
tor
ate
 

Au
dit
 tit
le 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

LIM
ITE
D 

Ex
ten
siv
e 

Ho
us

ing
 (n

ow
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 H

om
es

) 
Se

rvi
ce

 C
ha

rge
s –

 sy
ste

ms
 au

dit
 

 
 

Re
so

urc
es

 
Bu

sin
es

s C
on

tin
uit

y P
lan

nin
g –

 IT
 au

dit
 

 
Mo
de
rat
e 

Re
so

urc
es

 
Of

fic
ers

’ T
rav

el 
an

d S
ub

sis
ten

ce
 Al

low
an

ce
s –

 Fo
llo

w 
Up

 
au

dit
 

 
 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e’s

 
Do

cu
me

nt 
Im

ag
ing

 Sy
ste

ms
 – 

IT 
au

dit
 

 
 

 
 

SU
BS
TA
NT
IA
L 

Ex
ten
siv
e 

Re
so

urc
es

 
Co

ntr
ol 

an
d M

on
ito

rin
g o

f C
RB

 ch
ec

ks
 – 

Fo
llo

w 
Up

 au
dit

 
 

 
Re

so
urc

es
  

Ca
pit

al 
Ac

co
un

tin
g –

 Sy
ste

ms
 au

dit
 

 
 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Fo
ste

rin
g –

 Sy
ste

ms
 au

dit
 

 
 

Re
so

urc
es

 
Su

nd
ry 

De
bto

rs 
– S

ys
tem

s a
ud

it 
 

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Int
ern

et 
an

d e
-m

ail
 – 

IT 
au

dit
 

 
 

 
 

 
Mo
de
rat
e 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

an
d c

on
tro

l o
f T

en
an

t M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Or
ga

nis
ati

on
s (

TM
Os

) –
 Sy

ste
ms

 au
dit

 
 

 
Ad

ult
, H

ea
lth

 an
d W

ell
be

ing
 

Re
ce

ive
rsh

ips
 – 

Sy
ste

ms
 au

dit
 

 
 

Ad
ult

, H
ea

lth
 an

d W
ell

be
ing

 
Inc

om
e C

oll
ec

tio
n a

nd
 Ba

nk
ing

 – 
Sy

ste
ms

 au
dit

 
 

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
of 

Co
rpo

rat
e C

om
pla

int
s –

 Sy
ste

ms
 au

dit
 

 
 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e’s

 
Da

ta 
Pr

ote
cti

on
 – 

IT 
au

dit
 

 
 

 
 

Page 27



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Su

mm
ary

 of
 A

ud
its

 U
nd

ert
ak

en
  

 
 

 
 

 
 Li

m
ite

d 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Ch
arg

es
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

      

Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve

 of
 th

is 
au

dit
 w

as
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 as

su
ran

ce
 th

at 
so

un
d s

ys
tem

s 
are

 in
 p

lac
e 

to 
su

pp
ort

 th
e 

pro
pe

r a
nd

 e
ffe

cti
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
 

ch
arg

es
 to

 e
ns

ure
 th

at 
su

ms
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
fro

m 
lea

se
ho

lde
rs 

are
 

co
rre

ctl
y i

de
nti

fie
d, 

bil
led

 an
d r

ec
ov

ere
d. 

  
W

e 
fou

nd
 s

om
e 

pro
ble

ms
 h

av
e 

be
en

 e
nc

ou
nte

red
 in

 a
ll 

are
as

 o
f t

he
 

se
rvi

ce
 c

ha
rge

 s
ys

tem
 w

ith
 t

he
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

of 
the

 C
om

pla
int

s/D
isp

ute
 

Re
so

lut
ion

 pr
oc

es
s. 

 T
he

 un
de

rly
ing

 re
as

on
 fo

r t
he

se
 pr

ob
lem

s i
s d

ue
 to

 
the

 S
X3

 s
ys

tem
 a

nd
 d

ata
 m

igr
ati

on
 is

su
es

.  
Se

nio
r m

an
ag

em
en

t (
bo

th 
Co

un
cil 

an
d T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 H

om
es

 ) 
ha

ve
 id

en
tifi

ed
 th

e m
ajo

rity
 of

 th
es

e 
co

nc
ern

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

str
ivin

g 
to 

rem
ed

y 
the

 i
ss

ue
s 

by
 t

he
 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f a
n A

cti
on

 P
lan

.  A
lth

ou
gh

 it 
is 

rec
og

nis
ed

 th
at 

the
re 

are
 

co
ntr

ac
tua

l is
su

es
 w

ith
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 of
 S

X3
, w

hic
h a

re 
be

ing
 ad

dre
ss

ed
, 

ou
r c

on
ce

rn 
ho

we
ve

r, 
is 

the
 ri

sk
 o

f t
he

 A
cti

on
 P

lan
’s 

ke
y t

im
es

ca
les

 n
ot 

be
ing

 a
ch

iev
ed

.  
To

 m
an

ag
e 

thi
s 

ris
k, 

we
 h

av
e 

rec
om

me
nd

ed
 th

at 
the

 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 m

on
ito

red
 re

gu
lar

ly 
by

 To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

 D
MT

 
an

d 
at 

the
 m

on
thl

y c
lie

nt 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 m

ee
tin

gs
 b

etw
ee

n 
the

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

.  
All

 fin
din

gs
 a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 w
ere

 a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
the

n 
Dir

ec
tor

 o
f 

Ho
us

ing
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
no

w 
Int

eri
m 

Ch
ief

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
of 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Ho
me

s).
 

 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

 ***
 

Lim
ite

d 
 ** 

Page 28



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Ch
arg

es
 (C

on
t) 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

      

Ju
ly 

20
08

 
 Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Co
mm

en
t - 

Th
is 

iss
ue

 is
 be

ing
 ac

tiv
ely

 ad
dre

ss
ed

 by
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 H

om
es

, 
the

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l c

lie
nt 

fun
cti

on
 a

nd
 

Co
rpo

rat
e I

T. 
A 

de
tai

led
 sp

ec
ific

ati
on

 of
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 ha
s b

ee
n p

rep
are

d 
se

ttin
g o

ut 
the

 ke
y b

us
ine

ss
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 to
 re

so
lve

 ou
tst

an
din

g d
ata

 an
d 

fun
cti

on
ali

ty 
iss

ue
s. 

 T
his

 s
pe

cif
ica

tio
n 

is 
cu

rre
ntl

y 
su

bje
ct 

to 
ne

go
tia

tio
n 

wit
h 

the
 s

oft
wa

re 
su

pp
lie

r, 
wit

h a
gre

em
en

t 
an

tic
ipa

ted
 by

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08

.  T
he

 p
roj

ec
t p

lan
 a

ss
oc

iat
ed

 w
ith

 th
is 

wil
l b

e 
mo

nit
ore

d 
by

 th
e 

joi
nt 

IT 
Pr

oje
ct 

Bo
ard

 a
nd

 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 H
om

es
 D

MT
. P

rog
res

s 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 m

ad
e w

ith
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

are
as

 no
w 

res
olv

ed
. 

 

 
 

 

Page 29



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 

Co
mm
en
t   
  C
om
me
nts
 / F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Co
nti

nu
ity

  
 IT 

Au
dit

 
                   

Ma
y 

20
08

 
                  

Th
e 

ob
jec

tiv
e 

of 
thi

s a
ud

it w
as

 to
 se

ek
 a

ss
ura

nc
es

 o
ve

r t
he

 sy
ste

ms
 o

f 
co

ntr
ol 

to 
en

su
re 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 k

ey
 s

erv
ice

s 
ca

n 
co

nti
nu

e 
to 

op
era

te 
in 

ca
se

 of
 in

ter
rup

tio
n t

o i
ts 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re.
 Th

e a
ud

it n
ote

d t
ha

t o
n t

he
 w

ho
le,

 
alt

ho
ug

h 
the

 C
ou

nc
il h

as
 d

ev
elo

pe
d 

a 
me

ch
an

ism
 fo

r i
de

nti
fyi

ng
 th

rea
ts 

an
d t

he
n d

ev
elo

pin
g s

ys
tem

s t
o m

an
ag

e t
he

ir i
mp

ac
t, t

he
re 

is 
sc

op
e f

or 
the

 
au

tho
rity

 to
 s

tre
ng

the
n 

its
 b

us
ine

ss
 c

on
tin

uit
y a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
fur

the
r. 

Th
e 

ma
in 

iss
ue

s a
re 

su
mm

ari
se

d b
elo

w:
   

 
• 

Dis
as

ter
 R

ec
ov

ery
 pr

ior
itie

s a
cro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 cr

itic
al 

rec
ov

ery
 

tim
es

 ha
ve

 ye
t to

 be
 ag

ree
d f

or 
all

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 IT

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d i
n 

so
me

 c
as

es
 t

he
 p

rio
riti

sa
tio

n 
an

d 
cri

tic
al 

rec
ov

ery
 t

im
es

 f
or 

ind
ivid

ua
l s

erv
ice

s 
wit

hin
 d

ire
cto

rat
es

 a
re 

no
t i

de
nti

fie
d 

wit
hin

 a
ll 

dir
ec

tor
ate

 Bu
sin

es
s R

ec
ov

ery
 Pl

an
s. 

 
• 

So
me

 cr
itic

al 
bu

sin
es

s o
pe

rat
ion

s a
nd

 sy
ste

ms
 ha

ve
 be

en
 id

en
tifi

ed
 

in 
the

 D
isa

ste
r R

ec
ov

ery
 P

lan
.  H

ow
ev

er,
 so

me
 ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 ar
e n

ot 
inc

lud
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 D
isa

ste
r R

ec
ov

ery
 P

lan
s f

or 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 ba
se

d 
on

 th
e I

nte
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts 
e.g

. t
he

 pl
an

s f
or 

the
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
sy

ste
ms

 
an

d 
the

 d
oc

um
en

t i
ma

gin
g 

sy
ste

ms
 w

ere
 b

ein
g 

de
ve

lop
ed

 a
t t

he
 

tim
e o

f th
e a

ud
it. 

 
 

• 
So

me
 re

co
ve

ry 
tes

tin
g 

ha
s b

ee
n 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 fo
r s

ys
tem

s h
ow

ev
er,

 
thi

s h
as

 ye
t to

 in
clu

de
 al

l s
ys

tem
s. 

Te
sti

ng
 pe

rfo
rm

ed
 di

d n
ot 

inc
lud

e 
rep

res
en

tat
ive

s f
rom

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
se

rvi
ce

 to
 e

ns
ure

 th
e 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n 
wil

l p
roc

es
s d

ata
 as

 ex
pe

cte
d. 

  

Ex
ten

siv
e 

 ***
 

Lim
ite

d 
 ** 

  

Page 30



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 

Co
mm
en
t   
  C
om
me
nts
 / F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Co
nti

nu
ity

 
(C

on
t.) 

 IT 
Au

dit
 

                   

Ma
y 

20
08

 
                  

• 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 w

ork
 sp

ac
e f

or 
the

 us
e o

f 5
0 d

es
ks

 at
 th

e D
isa

ste
r 

Re
co

ve
ry 

sit
e 

an
d 

thi
s i

s i
nc

lud
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

ntr
ac

t w
ith

 th
e 

off
 si

te 
pro

vid
er.

  T
he

re 
is 

ho
we

ve
r li

mi
ted

 p
lan

nin
g o

n 
ho

w 
the

se
 sp

ac
es

 
wil

l b
e u

se
d. 

 
• 

Th
ere

 is
 c

urr
en

tly
 n

o 
pro

ce
ss

 to
 re

gu
lar

ly 
tes

t b
ac

k 
up

 d
ata

 to
 

en
su

re 
tha

t b
ac

k u
p t

ap
es

 ca
n b

e r
ea

d a
nd

 us
ed

 to
 re

sto
re 

da
ta 

in 
a 

dis
as

ter
 sc

en
ari

o. 
 

• 
Te

lep
ho

ny
 i

s 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

on
 o

ne
 m

em
be

r 
of 

sta
ff. 

Th
ere

 i
s 

inc
om

ple
te 

do
cu

me
nta

tio
n o

f th
e t

ele
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 es

tab
lish

ed
 fo

r 
bo

th 
vo

ice
 an

d d
ata

.  D
isa

ste
r re

co
ve

ry 
pla

ns
 fo

r te
lep

ho
ny

 ha
ve

 no
t 

be
en

 fu
lly 

es
tab

lish
ed

. 
 All

 fin
din

gs
 an

d r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e S
erv

ice
 H

ea
d I

CT
. 

 Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
en

t 
- 

Sin
ce

 t
he

 a
ud

it, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 B
us

ine
ss

 
Co

nti
nu

ity
 P

lan
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ref
res

he
d 

an
d 

re-
pu

bli
sh

ed
; t

he
 IC

T 
Dis

as
ter

 
Re

co
ve

ry 
pla

n h
as

 be
en

 al
ign

ed
 w

ith
 B

CP
 pr

ior
itie

s a
nd

 in
teg

rat
ed

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

Ma
jor

 Em
erg

en
cy

 Pl
an

. It
 fo

rm
s p

art
 4 

of 
the

 M
ajo

r E
me

rge
nc

y P
lan

.  
Th

e 
sc

op
e 

of 
the

 n
ew

 D
isa

ste
r R

ec
ov

ery
 co

ntr
ac

t w
ith

 N
DR

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ex

ten
de

d 
to 

me
et 

co
un

cil’
s 

pri
ori

tie
s 

an
d 

no
w 

co
ve

rs 
ad

dit
ion

al 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

su
ch

 a
s 

Sto
rag

e 
Ar

ea
 N

etw
ork

 (
SA

N)
 a

nd
 a

dd
itio

na
l 

de
pa

rtm
en

tal
 

sy
ste

ms
 

an
d 

ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
.   

Th
ree

 
of 

the
 ke

y 
au

dit
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n i

mp
lem

en
ted

.  
Th

e 
rem

ain
ing

 th
ree

 o
f t

he
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s h
av

e b
ee

n i
nc

lud
ed

 in
 th

e A
cti

on
 P

lan
 an

d p
rog

res
s w

ill 
be

 m
on

ito
red

. 
 

 
 

 

Page 31



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Li

m
ite

d 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Of
fic

ers
’ T

rav
el 

an
d 

Su
bs

ist
en

ce
 

All
ow

an
ce

s 
 Fo

llo
w 

Up
 au

dit
 

 

Ju
ne

 
20

08
 

Th
is 

wa
s a

 fo
llo

w 
up

 re
vie

w 
of 

an
 ea

rlie
r fu

ll s
ys

tem
s r

ev
iew

 w
hic

h r
ais

ed
 

12
 k

ey
 r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
to 

im
pro

ve
 t

he
 s

ys
tem

s 
of 

co
ntr

ol.
  

Th
e 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e p

rev
iou

s i
nte

rim
 H

ea
d o

f H
R.

  O
ur 

fol
low

 u
p 

tes
tin

g 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at 

thr
ee

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fu
lly 

im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 Th

e r
em

ain
ing

 ni
ne

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 re

lat
e t

o d
ev

elo
pin

g a
 

cle
ar 

po
licy

 on
 al

l s
taf

f tr
av

el 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 w
hic

h s
ho

uld
 be

 in
co

rpo
rat

ed
 

wit
hin

 th
e 

Co
un

cil’
s 

pro
po

se
d 

‘G
ree

n 
Tra

ve
l P

lan
’, 

an
d 

im
pro

vin
g 

the
 

co
ntr

ol 
ov

er 
pe

tty
 ca

sh
 a

nd
 m

ile
ag

e 
cla

im
s m

ad
e 

by
 st

aff
 to

ge
the

r w
ith

 
the

ir a
pp

rov
al 

by
 se

nio
r o

ffic
ers

.   
 Th

e J
oin

t D
ire

cto
r o

f H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rce
s h

as
 ag

ree
d a

cti
on

s t
o i

mp
lem

en
t 

the
 re

ma
ini

ng
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

. 
 Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Co
mm

en
t -

 S
inc

e 
the

 co
mp

let
ion

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w 

up
 re

vie
w,

 
fiv

e o
f th

e o
uts

tan
din

g r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s h

av
e b

ee
n c

om
ple

ted
 (R

ef.
 N

os
. 

02
.01

, 0
2.0

4, 
02

.06
, 0

2.0
7 a

nd
 02

.09
). 

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rce
s a

re 
co

nti
nu

ing
 

to 
wo

rk 
wit

h 
co

lle
ag

ue
s 

in 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

Lo
ca

litie
s 

an
d 

Cu
ltu

re 
on

 th
e 

‘G
ree

n T
rav

el 
Pla

n’ 
in 

ord
er 

to 
ac

tio
n a

ll r
em

ain
ing

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 

Mo
de

rat
e 

 ** 
Lim

ite
d 

 ** 

 

Page 32



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 

Co
mm
en
t   
  C
om
me
nts
 / F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Do
cu

me
nt 

Im
ag

ing
 

Sy
ste

ms
 

 IT 
Au

dit
 

                 

Ma
y 

20
08

 
                  

Do
cu

me
nt 

im
ag

ing
 s

ys
tem

s 
are

 in
cre

as
ing

ly 
be

ing
 u

se
d 

to 
sto

re 
an

d 
ma

na
ge

 th
e f

low
 of

 in
for

ma
tio

n w
ith

in 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

. T
he

re 
are

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
do

cu
me

nt 
im

ag
ing

 s
ys

tem
s 

be
ing

 u
se

d 
wit

hin
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
at 

a 
de

pa
rtm

en
tal

 le
ve

l t
o 

su
pp

ort
 e

xis
tin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
pe

cif
ic 

co
un

cil 
bu

sin
es

s. 
Th

e 
Ch

ild
ren

s a
nd

 A
du

lt H
ea

lth
 an

d W
ell

be
ing

 D
ire

cto
rat

e 
us

e 
the

 T
RI

M 
sy

ste
m,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 S
erv

ice
s 

us
e 

the
 ID

OX
 s

ys
tem

 a
nd

 
Co

mi
no

 is
 u

se
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 R

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 B

en
efi

t 
se

rvi
ce

s 
for

 
sc

an
nin

g 
an

d 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
do

cu
me

nta
tio

n 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

e 
pa

ym
en

t o
f 

be
ne

fits
 an

d C
ou

nc
il T

ax
 bi

llin
g. 

Th
e m

ain
 is

su
es

 ar
e s

um
ma

ris
ed

 be
low

:   
 

• 
Do

cu
me

nt 
im

ag
ing

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 n
ot 

be
en

 
de

fin
ed

. 
Ind

ivid
ua

l 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

ha
ve

 a
dd

res
se

d 
the

 i
ma

gin
g 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 th
eir

 ar
ea

 of
 re

sp
on

sib
ility

 an
d t

his
 ha

s m
ea

nt 
tha

t 
dif

fer
en

t s
ys

tem
s h

av
e b

ee
n i

mp
lem

en
ted

.  
• 

Int
erf

ac
e 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 d
oc

um
en

ts 
tha

t h
av

e 
be

en
 im

ag
ed

 a
re 

no
t d

efi
ne

d 
at 

co
rpo

rat
e 

or 
loc

al 
lev

el.
  

Ind
ivid

ua
l d

ep
art

me
nta

l 
Do

cu
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

ms
 i

nte
rfa

ce
 w

ith
 t

he
 b

us
ine

ss
 

ap
pli

ca
tio

n 
the

y 
su

pp
ort

, e
.g.

 T
RI

M 
wit

h 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
an

d 
ID

OX
 w

ith
 th

e P
lan

nin
g s

ys
tem

. 
 

Mo
de

rat
e 

 ** 
Lim

ite
d 

 ** 

 

Page 33



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 

Co
mm
en
t   
  C
om
me
nts
 / F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Do
cu

me
nt 

Im
ag

ing
 

Sy
ste

ms
 (C

on
t)  

 IT 
Au

dit
 

             

Ma
y 

20
08

 
                  

• 
A 

Co
un

cil 
wid

e d
oc

um
en

t im
ag

ing
 po

licy
 ha

s n
ot 

be
en

 es
tab

lish
ed

. 
Th

e 
us

e 
of 

the
 I

DO
X 

sy
ste

m 
is 

co
ns

ist
en

tly
 u

se
d 

wit
hin

 t
he

 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

for
 th

e 
su

pp
ort

 a
nd

 s
ca

nn
ing

 o
f p

lan
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

.  
Do

cu
me

nts
 ar

e n
ot 

co
ns

ist
en

tly
 im

ag
ed

 on
 th

e T
RI

M 
do

cu
me

nt 
im

ag
ing

 sy
ste

m,
 as

 re
lia

nc
e i

s s
till 

pla
ce

d o
n a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

pa
pe

r d
oc

um
en

ts.
 T

his
 is

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 th
e c

as
e i

n A
du

lt, 
He

alt
h a

nd
 

W
ell

be
ing

. 
 All

 fin
din

gs
 a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 w
ere

 a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d 
– 

IC
T a

nd
 th

e I
nfo

rm
ati

on
 G

ov
ern

an
ce

 O
ffic

er.
 

 Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
en

t –
 
Sin

ce
 th

e i
ss

ue
 of

 th
e r

ep
ort

, th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 

ac
tio

ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ta

ke
n: 

- 
  (1)

 W
e h

av
e i

nv
ite

d c
on

su
lta

nts
 to

 te
nd

er 
for

 w
ork

 ar
ou

nd
 en

su
rin

g l
eg

al 
ad

mi
ss

ibi
lity

 of
 al

l s
ca

nn
ed

 m
ate

ria
l a

nd
 m

ov
ing

 us
 to

wa
rds

 th
e 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

BS
10

00
8, 

the
 Br

itis
h S

tan
da

rd 
in 

Le
ga

l A
dm

iss
ibi

lity
;   

 
(2)

 Th
e r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s o
f th

e a
ud

it r
ep

ort
 ha

ve
 be

en
 in

co
rpo

rat
ed

 in
to 

the
 In

for
ma

tio
n G

ov
ern

an
ce

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

 re
vie

we
d b

y t
he

 cr
os

s-C
ou

nc
il 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
 G

rou
p; 

an
d 

(3)
 O

nc
e 

leg
al 

ad
mi

ss
ibi

lity
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

as
su

red
, a

 s
tra

teg
ic 

ap
pro

ac
h 

to 
do

cu
me

nt 
im

ag
ing

 w
ill 

be
 d

ev
elo

pe
d 

an
d 

ap
pro

ve
d 

by
 I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e G

rou
p. 

Mo
de

rat
e 

 ** 
Lim

ite
d 

 ** 

 

Page 34



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Co
ntr

ol 
an

d 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 of

 
CR

B C
he

ck
s 

 Fo
llo

w 
Up

 Au
dit

 

Ju
ne

 
20

08
 

Th
is 

wa
s a

 fo
llo

w 
up

 re
vie

w 
of 

an
 ea

rlie
r f

ull
 sy

ste
ms

 re
vie

w 
wh

ich
 ra

ise
d 

14
 k

ey
 r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
to 

im
pro

ve
 t

he
 s

ys
tem

s 
of 

co
ntr

ol.
 T

he
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e p

rev
iou

s i
nte

rim
 H

ea
d o

f H
R.

   
 Ou

r 
fol

low
 u

p 
tes

tin
g 

sh
ow

ed
 t

ha
t 

10
 r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 Th

e f
ou

r o
uts

tan
din

g r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s r

ela
te 

to 
de

ve
lop

ing
 

a c
lea

r C
RB

 po
licy

 an
d p

roc
ed

ure
s i

n r
es

pe
ct 

of 
the

 re
ten

tio
n p

eri
od

s f
or 

dis
clo

se
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

; r
ev

iew
ing

 th
e c

urr
en

t C
RB

 C
ou

nte
r s

ign
ato

ry 
list

 to
 

en
su

re 
its

 a
cc

ura
cy

; 
en

su
rin

g 
tha

t 
the

 A
du

lts
 S

oc
ial

 C
are

 d
ata

ba
se

 
ma

int
ain

ed
 fo

r th
e p

urp
os

es
 of

 C
RB

 ch
ec

ks
 is

 ac
cu

rat
e a

nd
 up

 to
 da

te;
 an

d 
rev

isin
g 

cu
rre

nt 
Gu

ida
nc

e 
an

d 
Po

licy
 fo

r C
RB

 D
isc

los
ure

s t
o 

inc
lud

e 
the

 
req

uir
em

en
t fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il t

o c
om

ply
, in

 fu
ll, 

wit
h a

ny
 A

ss
ura

nc
e C

he
ck

s 
or 

vis
its

 un
de

rta
ke

n b
y C

rim
ina

l R
ec

ord
s B

ure
au

. 
 Th

e J
oin

t D
ire

cto
r o

f H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rce
s h

as
 ag

ree
d a

cti
on

s t
o i

mp
lem

en
t 

the
 re

ma
ini

ng
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

. 
    

Ex
ten

siv
e 

 ***
 

Su
bs

tan
tia

l 
 ***
   

 

Page 35



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ca
pit

al 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

 

Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Th

is 
au

dit
 e

xa
mi

ne
d 

the
 s

ys
tem

s 
in 

pla
ce

 f
or 

pla
nn

ing
, 

mo
nit

ori
ng

, 
ac

co
un

tin
g a

nd
 re

po
rtin

g o
f c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
dit

ure
.   

Ou
r r

ev
iew

 sh
ow

ed
 th

at 
the

re 
is 

an
 ad

eq
ua

te 
lev

el 
of 

co
rpo

rat
e c

on
tro

l in
 

pla
ce

 o
ve

r 
the

 p
lan

nin
g 

an
d 

mo
nit

ori
ng

 o
f c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
dit

ure
.  

Th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g f
or 

ca
pit

al 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

is 
in 

lin
e w

ith
 th

e 
SO

RP
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

, 
bu

t 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 a
re 

req
uir

ed
 i

n 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 a
ss

et 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
.  

A 
co

mp
reh

en
siv

e 
an

d 
co

mp
let

e 
as

se
t r

eg
ist

er 
is 

at 
a 

de
ve

lop
me

nta
l s

tag
e. 

 Th
e C

orp
ora

te 
As

se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p’s

 
rol

e a
nd

 re
sp

on
sib

iliti
es

 in
 m

on
ito

rin
g t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 ca

pit
al 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re,
 its

 
as

se
t p

ort
fol

io 
an

d 
as

se
t d

isp
os

als
 n

ee
d 

to 
be

 st
ren

gth
en

ed
.  

We
 n

ote
d 

tha
t e

arl
ier

 o
n 

in 
the

 fin
an

cia
l y

ea
r, 

the
 p

roj
ec

ted
 ca

pit
al 

rec
eip

ts 
to 

fun
d 

Lo
ca

l P
rio

riti
es

 P
rog

ram
me

 fo
r 2

00
7/0

8 
ha

ve
 n

ot 
be

en
 fu

lly 
rea

lise
d 

an
d 

co
ns

eq
ue

ntl
y t

he
re 

is 
a r

isk
 of

 sh
ort

fal
l in

 th
is 

are
a w

hic
h i

s i
nc

lud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Ris

k R
eg

ist
er.

  W
e h

av
e t

he
ref

ore
, re

co
mm

en
de

d t
ha

t in
 fu

tur
e, 

pro
jec

tio
ns

 
of 

ca
pit

al 
rec

eip
ts 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 pr
ud

en
t a

nd
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 re

ali
sti

c v
alu

ati
on

s a
nd

 
tim

e f
ram

ew
ork

.  
W

e a
lso

 re
co

mm
en

de
d t

ha
t th

e c
urr

en
t £

25
0k

 th
res

ho
ld 

for
 re

po
rtin

g 
ca

pit
al 

ov
ers

pe
nd

s 
to 

the
 C

ab
ine

t b
e 

rev
iew

ed
 to

 e
xe

rci
se

 
eff

ec
tiv

e c
on

tro
l a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g. 

  
All

 fi
nd

ing
s 

an
d 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
we

re 
ag

ree
d 

wit
h 

the
 C

ap
ita

l a
nd

 
Inv

es
tm

en
t M

an
ag

er 
an

d S
erv

ice
 H

ea
d, 

Co
rpo

rat
e F

ina
nc

e. 
 

£5
6M

 
Ca

pit
al 

Pr
og

ram
m

e f
or 

20
07

/08
 

 ***
 

Su
bs

tan
tia

l 
 ***
   

 

Page 36



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Fo
ste

rin
g  

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

 

Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Th

is 
rev

iew
 so

ug
ht 

to 
pro

vid
e 

as
su

ran
ce

 o
ve

r c
on

tro
ls 

for
 m

an
ag

ing
 th

e 
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 

ch
ild

ren
 w

ith
 a

pp
rov

ed
 fo

ste
r c

are
rs 

in 
ac

co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h 

the
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 le
gis

lat
ive

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
, a

nd
 th

at 
pa

ym
en

t f
or 

su
ch

 c
are

 is
 

ma
de

 i
n 

ac
co

rda
nc

e 
wit

h 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 F
ina

nc
ial

 R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

Pr
oc

ed
ure

s. 
 Th

e a
ud

it i
de

nti
fie

d t
ha

t th
ere

 ar
e c

lea
r p

oli
cy

 an
d p

roc
ed

ure
s i

n p
lac

e f
or 

pla
cin

g 
ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

 fo
ste

r c
are

rs.
  

As
se

ss
me

nts
 a

re 
ca

rrie
d 

ou
t f

or 
all

 
ch

ild
ren

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 se

t re
gu

lat
ion

s a
nd

 pl
ac

em
en

ts 
are

 m
ad

e w
ith

 
ap

pro
ve

d 
fos

ter
 c

are
rs.

  
Th

ere
 is

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

inf
orm

ati
on

 av
ail

ab
le 

wh
ich

 is
 re

po
rte

d u
pw

ard
s a

nd
 m

on
ito

red
 at

 te
am

 an
d 

se
rvi

ce
 le

ve
l.  

Th
e o

nly
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s i
de

nti
fie

d r
ela

ted
 to

 in
div

idu
al 

sig
ne

d 
ag

ree
me

nts
 no

t b
ein

g i
n p

lac
e f

or 
pla

ce
me

nts
 m

ad
e w

ith
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
on

 th
e 

Pa
n-L

on
do

n 
dir

ec
tor

y 
an

d 
au

dit
 n

ot 
be

ing
 a

ble
 t

o 
ev

ide
nc

e 
vis

its
 

un
de

rta
ke

n i
n t

he
 fir

st 
we

ek
 of

 pl
ac

em
en

ts.
 

 All
 fin

din
gs

 an
d r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e S

erv
ice

 H
ea

d –
 

Re
so

urc
es

. 
 

£1
5.9

M  ***
 

Su
bs

tan
tia

l 
 ***
   

 

Page 37



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Tit
le 

Da
te 
of 

Re
po
rt 

Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Su
nd

ry 
De

bto
rs 

–  
 Sy

ste
ms

 
Au

dit
 

                   

Au
gu

st 
20

08
 

                  

Th
is 

au
dit

 ex
am

ine
d t

he
 sy

ste
ms

 in
 pl

ac
e f

or 
rai

sin
g d

eb
tor

s a
cc

ou
nts

, fo
r 

co
lle

cti
ng

 th
e d

eb
t a

nd
 fo

r re
co

ve
rin

g t
he

 in
co

me
 du

e f
rom

 su
nd

ry 
de

bto
rs.

  
Th

e m
ain

 is
su

es
 ar

isin
g a

re 
su

mm
ari

se
d b

elo
w:

   
 

• 
Pr

oc
ed

ure
s 

req
uir

e 
an

 in
vo

ice
 to

 b
e 

rai
se

d 
wit

hin
 fi

ve
 w

ork
ing

 d
ay

s 
fol

low
ing

 a
 fo

rm
al 

req
ue

st.
  A

ud
it t

es
tin

g 
of 

20
 in

vo
ice

s s
ho

we
d 

tha
t 

fou
r h

ad
 n

o 
do

cu
me

nta
tio

n 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

e 
rea

so
n 

the
 in

vo
ice

 w
as

 
rai

se
d, 

as
 th

ey
 w

ere
 in

 th
e f

orm
 of

 em
ail

s a
nd

 at
tac

hm
en

ts.
  F

urt
he

r, i
n 

tw
o 

ca
se

s, 
inv

oic
es

 w
ere

 ra
ise

d 
ov

er 
se

ve
n 

we
ek

s a
fte

r t
he

 o
rig

ina
l 

req
ue

sts
 w

ere
 re

ce
ive

d. 
 

 
• 

Th
ere

 is
 n

o 
po

licy
 fo

r d
ea

lin
g 

wit
h 

the
 y

ea
r e

nd
 b

ala
nc

e 
so

 th
e 

Su
sp

en
se

 A
cc

ou
nt 

ca
n 

be
 c

lea
red

. T
he

 b
ala

nc
e 

in 
the

 s
us

pe
ns

e 
ac

co
un

t a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f J
an

ua
ry 

20
08

 w
as

 £
63

,07
9. 

 O
uts

tan
din

g 
su

sp
en

se
 ac

co
un

t it
em

s a
re 

no
t re

mo
ve

d a
t th

e e
nd

 of
 a 

fin
an

cia
l y

ea
r, 

co
ns

eq
ue

ntl
y t

he
 ac

co
un

t h
eld

 in
co

me
 fro

m 
20

04
.   

 
• 

W
e o

bta
ine

d a
dv

ice
 fr

om
 Le

ga
l S

erv
ice

s o
n t

he
 st

atu
s o

f th
e C

ou
nc

il 
Ba

iliff
s. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 B

ail
iffs

 ar
e n

ot 
off

ice
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

rt a
s i

mp
lie

d o
n 

the
 do

cu
me

nta
tio

n s
erv

ed
 on

 th
e d

eb
tor

.  T
he

re 
is,

 th
ere

for
e s

om
e r

isk
 

of 
mi

sre
pre

se
nta

tio
n t

o t
he

 pu
bli

c. 
 

• 
Ge

ne
ral

ly,
 al

l th
e p

roc
ed

ure
s s

up
po

rtin
g t

he
 op

era
tio

ns
 of

 su
nd

ry 
de

bt 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

req
uir

e t
o b

e u
pd

ate
d. 

 All
 fin

din
gs

 an
d r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e S

erv
ice

 M
an

ag
er 

– 
Re

ve
nu

e S
erv

ice
s. 

 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

 
***

 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 ***
   

 

Page 38



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 

om
me
nt 
    
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Int
ern

et 
an

d e
-

Ma
il 

 IT 
Au

dit
 

                   

Ma
y 

20
08

 
                  

Nin
e 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s w
ere

 ra
ise

d 
as

 a
 re

su
lt o

f t
his

 a
ud

it, 
ho

we
ve

r n
o 

pri
ori

ty 
1 i

ss
ue

s w
ere

 ra
ise

d. 
Th

e m
ain

 is
su

es
 ar

e s
um

ma
ris

ed
 be

low
:   

 
• 

Th
e E

-m
ail

 &
 In

ter
ne

t p
oli

cy
 is

 no
t in

clu
de

d a
s p

art
 of

 th
e i

nd
uc

tio
n 

tra
ini

ng
, a

nd
 us

ers
 ar

e n
ot 

pro
vid

ed
 w

ith
 a 

co
py

 of
 or

 an
 el

ec
tro

nic
 

lin
k t

o t
he

 po
licy

. U
se

rs 
are

 al
so

 no
t re

qu
ire

d t
o a

ck
no

wle
dg

e p
oli

cy
 

up
da

tes
, 

e.g
. 

thr
ou

gh
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
vo

tin
g 

bu
tto

ns
 t

o 
co

nfi
rm

 
ac

kn
ow

led
ge

me
nt.

  
• 

Th
ere

 is
 a

n 
ag

ree
me

nt 
wit

h 
an

 e
xte

rna
l c

om
pa

ny
 w

hic
h 

pro
vid

es
 

24
/7 

ma
int

en
an

ce
 

co
ve

r 
of 

the
 

int
ern

et.
 

 
Ho

we
ve

r 
the

se
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

tes
ted

 to
 e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
y c

ou
ld 

be
 

rec
ov

ere
d i

n t
he

 ev
en

t o
f a

 di
sa

ste
r.  

  
• 

Int
rus

ion
 de

tec
tio

n h
as

 no
t b

ee
n i

mp
lem

en
ted

 fo
r in

ter
ne

t u
se

. 
• 

Th
ere

 is
 no

 re
gu

lar
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r p
en

etr
ati

on
 te

sti
ng

. 
• 

All
 s

taf
f h

av
e 

co
mp

let
e 

an
d 

un
res

tric
ted

 a
cc

es
s 

to 
all

 u
n-b

loc
ke

d 
pu

bli
c 

sit
es

 o
n 

the
 In

ter
ne

t. 
Us

ag
e 

pa
tte

rns
 a

nd
 v

isit
s 

to 
no

n-
bu

sin
es

s 
rel

ate
d 

sit
es

 a
re 

no
t 

mo
nit

ore
d 

for
 a

pp
rop

ria
te 

us
e. 

 
Int

ern
et 

us
ag

e l
og

s a
re 

pro
du

ce
d b

ut 
are

 on
ly 

rev
iew

ed
 on

 re
qu

es
t. 

Th
e 

Co
un

cil'
s 

Int
ern

et 
an

d 
E-

ma
il 

Po
licy

 p
erm

its
 o

ffic
ers

 li
mi

ted
 

pe
rso

na
l u

se
 of

 th
e I

nte
rne

t.  
 

• 
Th

ere
 ar

e n
o f

ac
iliti

es
 fo

r te
sti

ng
 ch

an
ge

s t
o t

he
 Fi

rew
all

. 
 An

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 w
as

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e S

erv
ice

 H
ea

d –
 IC

T. 
 

Ex
ten

siv
e 

 
***

 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 ***
   

 

Page 39



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
an

d C
on

tro
l o

f 
TM

Os
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

Ju
ne

 
20

08
 

Th
is 

au
dit

 in
vo

lve
d 

an
 e

xa
mi

na
tio

n 
of 

the
 sy

ste
ms

 in
 p

lac
e f

or 
ma

na
gin

g 
an

d 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 T

MO
s 

se
t u

p 
un

de
r 

the
 H

ou
sin

g 
(R

igh
t t

o 
Ma

na
ge

) 
Re

gu
lat

ion
s 1

99
4. 

 T
he

re 
are

 fiv
e 

TM
Os

 w
ith

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s, 
ho

we
ve

r 
for

 th
e 

pu
rpo

se
 of

 th
is 

au
dit

, s
am

ple
 te

sti
ng

 w
as

 u
nd

ert
ak

en
 a

t B
an

cro
ft, 

De
nn

is 
Co

-op
era

tiv
e 

an
d 

Ste
ph

en
 &

 M
ati

lda
 C

o-o
pe

rat
ive

.  
Ou

r r
ev

iew
 

ide
nti

fie
d t

ha
t th

e N
om

ina
tio

n a
nd

 Le
ttin

gs
 sy

ste
ms

 ar
e s

ati
sfa

cto
ry 

wit
hin

 
the

 TM
Os

.  
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

all
ow

an
ce

s a
re 

ge
ne

ral
ly 

co
rre

ctl
y s

et 
do

wn
 an

d 
ca

lcu
lat

ed
 ac

cu
rat

ely
. T

he
 TM

O 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
for

ma
tio

n r
etu

rns
 co

mp
are

d 
fav

ou
rab

ly 
wit

h 
LB

TH
 fo

r a
ve

rag
e 

rel
et 

tim
es

.  
 H

ow
ev

er,
 w

e 
hig

hli
gh

ted
 

the
 fo

llo
win

g k
ey

 is
su

es
:- 

 
• 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Ag

ree
me

nts
 be

tw
ee

n L
BT

H 
an

d t
he

 in
div

idu
al 

Te
na

nt 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Or
ga

nis
ati

on
s (

TM
Os

) re
qu

ire
 re

gu
lar

 re
vie

w.
   

• 
Th

ere
 is

 a 
ge

ne
ral

 la
ck

 of
 an

 ov
era

ll s
tra

teg
y, 

su
pp

ort
ing

 po
licy

 an
d 

loc
al 

pro
ce

du
res

.   
• 

Ar
ea

s 
of 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

LB
TH

 
an

d 
the

 
Te

na
nt 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

s, 
sp

ec
ific

all
y, 

rol
e a

nd
 re

sp
on

sib
iliti

es
 of

 
the

 Li
ais

on
 O

ffic
er 

are
 no

t c
lea

rly
 de

fin
ed

, w
hic

h i
nc

rea
se

s t
he

 ris
k 

of 
ga

ps
 i

n 
ex

pe
cta

tio
ns

 l
ea

din
g 

to 
dil

uti
on

 o
f 

co
ntr

ol 
an

d 
ac

co
un

tab
ility

.   
  

Mo
de

rat
e 

 ** 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 ***
               

 

Page 40



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
an

d C
on

tro
l o

f 
TM

Os
 (C

on
t) 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

Ju
ne

 
20

08
 

 Ho
us

ing
 M

an
ag

em
en

t h
av

e 
pro

du
ce

d 
an

 ‘A
cti

on
 P

lan
’ f

or 
ea

ch
 T

MO
 to

 
ad

dre
ss

 is
su

es
 ra

ise
d b

y t
his

 au
dit

. It
 is

 re
co

gn
ise

d t
ha

t s
om

e i
ss

ue
s w

ill 
ne

ed
 a 

lon
ge

r ti
me

 pe
rio

d t
o i

mp
lem

en
t. 

 All
 f

ind
ing

s 
an

d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

we
re 

ag
ree

d 
wit

h 
the

 D
ire

cto
r 

of 
Ho

us
ing

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (n

ow
 in

ter
im

 C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e o
f T

HH
). 

  

 
 

   

Page 41



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Re
ce

ive
rsh

ips
 

 Sy
ste

ms
 Au

dit
 

Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve

 of
 th

is 
au

dit
 w

as
 to

 as
su

re 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

tha
t th

ere
 ar

e s
ou

nd
 

sy
ste

ms
 in

 p
lac

e 
for

 m
an

ag
ing

 R
ec

eiv
ers

hip
 ca

se
s f

or 
clie

nts
 to

 p
rev

en
t 

err
or,

 lo
ss

, o
r fr

au
d a

nd
 en

su
re 

co
mp

lia
nc

e w
ith

 go
ve

rni
ng

 le
gis

lat
ion
.  T

he
 

Co
urt

 of
 P

rot
ec

tio
n h

as
 ap

po
int

ed
 th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec

tor
 – 

Ad
ult

s, 
He

alt
h 

an
d W

ell
be

ing
 as

 R
ec

eiv
er 

for
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 cl
ien

ts 
wh

o l
ac

k t
he

 ca
pa

cit
y t

o 
ma

ke
 de

cis
ion

s a
bo

ut 
as

pe
cts

 of
 th

eir
 ow

n w
elf

are
, p

rop
ert

y a
nd

 fin
an

cia
l 

aff
air

s. 
 O

pe
rat

ion
all

y, 
the

 fin
an

cia
l a

ffa
irs

 ar
e m

an
ag

ed
 on

 a 
da

ily 
ba

sis
 by

 
tw

o 
As

sis
tan

t 
Ac

co
un

tan
ts,

 
thr

ou
gh

 
tw

o 
se

pa
rat

e 
Ba

rcl
ay

s 
Ba

nk
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Ac
co

un
ts.
   

 Ou
r 

rev
iew

 f
ou

nd
 t

ha
t 

ge
ne

ral
ly 

the
re 

are
 a

de
qu

ate
 c

on
tro

ls 
for

 
ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n 
of 

rec
eiv

ers
hip

 c
as

es
.  

Cli
en

ts’
 fi

na
nc

ial
 tr

an
sa

cti
on

s 
are

 
ma

na
ge

d t
hro

ug
h t

wo
 C

om
mu

nit
y B

an
k A

cc
ou

nts
.  T

he
 C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

 
is 

the
 s

ole
 s

ign
ato

ry 
to 

the
se

 a
cc

ou
nts

.  
Ea

ch
 c

lie
nt’

s 
inc

om
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 ar
e c

on
tro

lle
d t

hro
ug

h i
nd

ivid
ua

l c
lie

nt 
ac

co
un

ts,
 

an
d b

an
k a

cc
ou

nts
 ar

e r
eg

ula
rly

 re
co

nc
ile

d w
ith

 cl
ien

t a
cc

ou
nts

.  H
ow

ev
er,

 
the

re 
is 

no
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t c
he

ck
/re

vie
w 

of 
the

 w
ork

 of
 th

e t
wo

 ac
co

un
tan

ts 
in 

ma
na

gin
g 

clie
nt 

ac
co

un
t 

tra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 t

he
 r

ec
on

cili
at i

on
 p

roc
es

s. 
 

Mo
reo

ve
r, t

he
re 

are
 no

 de
tai

led
 w

ritt
en

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s i
n r

es
pe

ct 
of 

ma
na

gin
g 

clie
nt 

ac
co

un
t t

ran
sa

cti
on

s 
an

d 
the

ir 
rec

on
cili

ati
on

 w
ith

 b
an

k 
ac

co
un

ts.
  

Th
ere

 is
 a

lso
 so

me
 sc

op
e 

to 
rev

iew
 th

e 
ter

ms
 o

f b
an

k a
cc

ou
nts

 to
 e

arn
 

hig
he

r le
ve

l o
f in

ter
es

t o
n b

ala
nc

es
.   

 All
 fin

din
gs

 an
d r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s w
ere

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e F

ina
nc

e M
an

ag
er.

 

Ne
t 

ba
lan

ce
 of

 
£1

.2M
 

 ** 

Su
bs

tan
tia

l 
 ***
               

Page 42



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Inc
om

e 
Co

lle
cti

on
 an

d 
Ba

nk
ing

  
 Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit

 
    

Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Th

is 
au

dit
 e

xa
mi

ne
d 

the
 s

ys
tem

s 
an

d 
co

ntr
ols

 in
 p

lac
e 

for
 c

oll
ec

tin
g, 

ba
nk

ing
 a

nd
 r

ec
ov

eri
ng

 in
co

me
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
fro

m 
clie

nts
 a

nd
 

cu
sto

me
rs 

of 
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing

 D
ire

cto
rat

e. 
  

 Fro
m 

ou
r r

ev
iew

, w
e 

fou
nd

 th
at 

res
ide

nts
’ c

on
trib

uti
on

s a
re 

as
se

ss
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 th
e D

ep
art

me
nt 

of 
He

alt
h g

uid
an

ce
, w

ith
 fin

an
cia

l d
eta

ils 
of 

the
 cl

ien
ts’

 ca
re 

pa
ck

ag
es

 a
nd

 in
co

me
 b

ein
g 

rec
ord

ed
 o

n 
a 

Pr
iva

te 
& 

Vo
lun

tar
y 

da
tab

as
e. 

 T
he

re 
are

 c
lea

r 
pro

ce
du

res
 fo

r 
ca

sh
 c

oll
ec

tin
g 

off
ice

rs,
 a

cc
es

s 
to 

rec
eip

t b
oo

ks
 is

 c
on

tro
lle

d 
an

d 
the

 in
co

me
 o

ffic
er 

mo
nit

ore
d 

Ca
sh

 &
 D

ep
os

it 
ret

urn
s. 

Th
ere

 a
re 

oc
ca

sio
ns

 w
he

re 
ca

sh
 

co
lle

cti
ng

 of
fic

ers
 do

es
 no

t a
lwa

ys
 st

ric
tly

 co
mp

ly 
wit

h p
roc

ed
ure

s r
es

ult
ing

 
in 

de
lay

s i
n b

an
kin

g i
nc

om
e. 

 W
e a

lso
 no

ted
 th

at 
so

me
 cl

ien
t fi

les
 co

uld
 no

t 
be

 re
trie

ve
d 

fro
m 

arc
hiv

e, 
an

d 
he

nc
e 

tes
tin

g 
co

uld
 n

ot 
be

 c
on

du
cte

d 
in 

the
se

 ca
se

s. 
 Th

ere
 ar

e a
 fe

w 
arr

ea
rs 

ca
se

s w
hic

h n
ee

de
d t

o b
e f

oll
ow

ed
 

up
 lo

ca
lly 

as
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s c
en

tra
l In

co
me

 se
cti

on
 is

 n
ot 

us
ed

 fo
r r

ais
ing

 
ac

co
un

ts.
  

 Fin
din

gs
 an

d r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e F
ina

nc
e M

an
ag

er.
 

 

£1
.4 

M  ** 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 ***
   

  

Page 43



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 
Co
mm
en
ts 
/ F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
of 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Co
mp

lai
nts

 
 Sy

ste
ms

 Au
dit

 
    

Ju
ly 

20
08

 
Th

e 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
of 

thi
s 

rev
iew

 w
as

 to
 a

ss
ure

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ha
t t

he
re 

are
 

so
un

d s
ys

tem
s i

n p
lac

e f
or 

ma
na

gin
g a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g c

om
pla

int
s r

ec
eiv

ed
 

by
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

 Th
e a

ud
it a

lso
 ex

am
ine

d p
roc

ed
ure

s f
or 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t th

e 
co

ntr
ol 

fai
lur

es
/ga

ps
 id

en
tifi

ed
 du

rin
g t

he
 in

ve
sti

ga
tio

n o
f c

om
pla

int
s, 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 ad

dre
ss

ed
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 to

 av
oid

 re
cu

rre
nc

e. 
Ou

r re
vie

w 
ide

nti
fie

d t
ha

t th
ere

 ar
e r

ob
us

t s
ys

tem
s a

nd
 pr

oc
ed

ure
s i

n p
lac

e 
for

 m
an

ag
ing

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
co

mp
lai

nts
 re

ce
ive

d 
by

 th
e 

Co
un

cil.
  T

he
re 

are
 cl

ea
r p

oli
cie

s a
nd

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s f
or 

off
ice

rs 
to 

fol
low

.  T
he

re 
are

 al
so

 cl
ea

r 
pro

ce
du

res
 an

d g
uid

an
ce

 fo
r r

es
ide

nts
 an

d f
or 

the
 ge

ne
ral

 pu
bli

c t
o f

oll
ow

. 
Th

e 
sy

ste
ms

 fo
r r

ec
ord

ing
, a

dm
ini

ste
rin

g 
an

d 
ma

na
gin

g 
co

mp
lai

nts
 a

re 
sa

tis
fac

tor
y. 

 T
he

re 
is 

a 
sy

ste
m 

in 
pla

ce
 to

 e
ns

ure
 th

at 
co

mp
lai

nts
 a

t 
va

rio
us

 st
ag

es
 ar

e m
on

ito
red

 ag
ain

st 
se

t ta
rge

ts.
  H

ow
ev

er,
 w

e n
ote

d t
ha

t 
the

 ta
rge

t fo
r s

tag
e 1

 co
mp

lai
nts

 is
 no

t b
ein

g a
ch

iev
ed

, a
nd

 th
is 

is 
reg

ula
rly

 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 th

e 
CM

T. 
 O

ur 
rev

iew
 fo

un
d 

so
me

 s
co

pe
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e 
rep

ort
ing

 of
 co

ntr
ol 

fai
lur

es
/ga

ps
 le

ad
ing

 to
 a 

co
mp

lai
nt 

to 
ind

ivid
ua

l D
MT

s 
an

d 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

ds
 to

 e
ns

ure
 cl

ea
r a

cc
ou

nta
bil

ity
 to

 im
pro

ve
 co

ntr
ols

 to
 

pre
ve

nt 
rec

urr
en

ce
.  W

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ed

 th
at 

the
 C

orp
ora

te 
Co

mp
lai

nts
 U

nit
 

sh
ou

ld 
wo

rk 
joi

ntl
y 

wit
h 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 a

nd
 R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

ms
 to

 
en

su
re 

tha
t k

ey
 ri

sk
s a

re 
fac

tor
ed

 in
 fo

r f
utu

re 
au

dit
 re

vie
ws

 a
nd

 in
 th

e 
se

rvi
ce

 pl
an

nin
g p

roc
es

s a
t lo

ca
l le

ve
l.  

 
 All

 fin
din

gs
 an

d r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s w

ere
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th

e S
erv

ice
 H

ea
d –

 
Cu

sto
me

r A
cc

es
s. 

 

Mo
de

rat
e 

 ** 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 ***
   

  

Page 44



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Tit
le 

Da
te of 

Re
po
rt 

Co
mm
en
t   
  C
om
me
nts
 / F
ind
ing
s 

Sc
ale
 of
 

Se
rvi
ce
 

As
su
ran
ce
 

Le
ve
l 

Da
ta 

Pr
ote

cti
on

 
 IT 

Au
dit

 
                   

Ma
y 

20
08

 
                  

10
 re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 w
ere

 ra
ise

d a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f th

is 
au

dit
, h

ow
ev

er 
thi

s d
id 

no
t 

inc
lud

e 
an

y 
pri

ori
ty 

1 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s. 

Th
e 

ma
in 

iss
ue

s 
are

 
su

mm
ari

se
d b

elo
w:

   
 

• 
It 

wa
s 

ide
nti

fie
d 

tha
t t

he
 In

for
ma

tio
n 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e 
Ma

na
ge

r (
Da

ta 
Pr

ote
cti

on
 O

ffic
er)

 is
 n

ot 
rou

tin
ely

 c
on

su
lte

d 
as

 p
art

 o
f a

ny
 n

ew
 

sy
ste

ms
 d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
r p

roc
ure

me
nt 

pro
ce

ss
 to

 co
mm

en
t o

n 
an

y 
da

ta 
pro

tec
tio

n i
mp

lica
tio

ns
 of

 sy
ste

m 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

or 
us

e o
f d

ata
. 

• 
Th

e 
LB

TH
 w

eb
sit

e 
pro

vid
es

 a
 s

ec
tio

n 
de

ali
ng

 w
ith

 c
om

pla
int

s 
of 

dif
fer

ing
 na

tur
es

; h
ow

ev
er 

no
 de

tai
ls 

reg
ard

ing
 th

e h
an

dli
ng

 of
 da

ta 
pro

tec
tio

n 
co

mp
lai

nts
 c

ou
ld 

be
 fo

un
d, 

e.g
. c

on
tac

t d
eta

ils 
of 

the
 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 C
om

mi
ss

ion
ers

 O
ffic

e. 
 S

im
ila

rly
 n

o 
pri

nte
d 

lea
fle

ts 
wh

ich
 d

eta
ile

d 
the

 c
om

pla
int

s 
ha

nd
lin

g 
pro

ce
du

res
 f

or 
da

ta 
pro

tec
tio

n w
ere

 av
ail

ab
le.

 
• 

Th
e 

cu
rre

nt 
Da

ta 
Pr

ote
cti

on
 P

oli
cy

 is
 in

 d
raf

t f
orm

at 
an

d 
ha

s 
no

t 
be

en
 fo

rm
all

y a
pp

rov
ed

. 
• 

It 
wa

s 
ide

nti
fie

d 
tha

t f
or 

pu
rpo

se
 5

 &
 1

2 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 d

ata
 

pro
tec

tio
n n

oti
fic

ati
on

 th
at 

da
ta 

wil
l b

e t
ran

sfe
rre

d w
orl

dw
ide

 vi
a t

he
 

int
ern

et,
 in

clu
din

g p
ers

on
al 

inf
orm

ati
on

.  H
ow

ev
er,

 P
urp

os
e 6

 st
ate

s 
tha

t th
ere

 w
ill 

be
 no

 tra
ns

fer
 ou

tsi
de

 E
EA

 bu
t tr

an
sfe

rs 
ca

n b
e m

ad
e 

via
 th

e i
nte

rne
t e

.g.
 Ex

am
 re

su
lts

.  
 An

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 w
as

 ag
ree

d w
ith

 th
e I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
 M

an
ag

er.
 

 

Mo
de

rat
e 

 ** 
Su

bs
tan

tia
l 

 ***
   

  

Page 45



         
 APPENDIX 3 

      
 

 
Audit Plan 2008/09 
 
Work in progress 
 
 
Audit Activity 
 

 
Audit status 

Corporate Systems and Council-wide 
Reviews 

 

Mapping of Material Systems On-going 
Project Management Field work 
Local Area Agreements Draft Report issued 
Procurement of Mobile Phones Field work 
BV Performance Indicators Completed 
  
Assistant Chief Executive’s  
Communications Strategy Field work 
Members Code of Conduct – Follow up audit Draft report issued 
  
Children’s Services  
Home to school Transport for Special Needs 
children 

Exit Meeting 

TR17 Grant Claim for Teachers Pensions for 
Opted out schools 

Report issued  

Independent Schools Fees – Follow up audit  Draft report issued 
Contract Services Income Collection and 
Monitoring 

Audit Brief stage 

 
 
 

 

Page 46



         
 APPENDIX 3 

      
 

 
Audit Activity 
 

 
Audit status 

Communities, Localities and Culture  
Penalty Charge Notices – Follow Up audit Draft report issued 
Grounds Maintenance – Follow up audit Field work 
Street Lighting Draft Report issued 
Street Works Draft report issued 
  
Development and Renewal  
Monitoring of grants to voluntary organisations Draft report being 

prepared 
Management of Commercial Property 
portfolio 

Field work 

Tower Hamlets Homes  
Management of Voids Draft report being 

prepared 
Teesdale estate – concrete repairs and 
associated works, Current Contract Audit 

Draft report issued 

Unauthorised Occupancy Draft report issued 
Kerry House – Central Heating works, Current 
Contract Audit 

Field work 

Grounds Maintenance – Contract Monitoring 
Follow up audit 
 

Field work 

Adult, Health and Wellbeing  
Homeless Assessment Exit meeting 
Commissioning of Elderly services Exit Meeting 
 
 

 

Page 47



         
 APPENDIX 3 

      
 

 
Audit Activity 
 

 
Audit status 

Resources  
Local Housing Allowances – system 
implementation 

Draft report issued 

Acting up and Honoraria payments – follow up 
audit 

Draft report issued 

Compensation claims – follow up audit Draft report issued 
Creditors Draft report issued 
Payroll Draft report issued 
Housing Benefits Draft report issued 
Procurement Draft report issued 
  
 
 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	61 Audit Progress Report
	71 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report

